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Camp Nichols is located in Cimarron County, Oklahoma, approximately three miles
northwest of the town of Wheeless. The site is 7-1/2 miles southwest of any
formal marker (see accompanying photograph).

The ruins are situated on a high point of land between two ravines cut by the
forks of South Carrizozo Creek. The topography is broken and wild, bestowing
upon the site a scenic beauty accentuated by its isolation and freedom from
modern intrusions. One quarter mile west of the ruins, in the shadow of cedar-
covered bluffs, is Cedar Spring. This was the water supply for the camp as well as
for passing wagon trains. South of the camp one-half mile are exceptional
remains of the Cimarron Cutoff. These may be followed for many miles. They vary
from gullied ruts on steep slopes to shallow troughs 30 or 40 feet across and

1 or 2 feet deep. They execute sweeping curves around rough outcrops and in
descending and ascending the banks of stream courses. Altogether they are

among the most impressive trail remains along the entire trail.

Founded by Col. Kit Carson, the camp was composed, it is thought, of approximately
25 buildings. These structures included various officer's quarters, barracks,
though at first soldiers lived in tents with stone walls, several guardhouses

and by far the largest building the commissary. All buildings were fashioned

of local materials, sandstone, adobe and sod.

Presently, there is very little left of the camp. Extensive ruins had been
present, walls ranging up to three feet in height. Stones lay on open ground
and marked the sites of the original buildings. This condition has changed
drastically in recent years as local persons have removed many of the stones
for their personal use. Practically speaking, because of its neglect and

the indifference of various parties in its preservation, the site's integrity
has been destroyed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Camp Nichols was founded in May 1865 by Col. Kit Carson to protect wagon trains
using the dangerous Cimarron Cutoff. The bloody Indian uprisings of 1864
continued into 1865 on the Cimarron Cutoff. Fearing a full-scale Plains war,
General James H. Carleton, commanding the Department of New Mexico, ordered
Carson to establish Camp Nichols. Camp Nichols was designed to be a desert
halfway station on the route of 300 miles between Fort Union and the Cimarron
Crossing of the Arkansas. By June, Carson's force of New Mexico and California
volunteers had built the camp which occupied an area about 200 feet square,
enclosed by breastworks of stone and banked earth.

Camp Nichols was an important post throughout the summer of 1865, providing

a way station and rallying point on the most dangerous segment of the Cimarron
Cutoff. Its troops escorted wagon trains between Fort Union and the Arkansas.

The camp site has all but been lost with the passage of time. There remains
however, a collection of the stones used in the construction of the fortification.
The property is under single private ownership and is not accessible by the
public.

History

Camp Nichols was founded in May 1865, by Colonel Christopher "Kit' Carson
to protect wagon trains using the dangerous Cimarron Cutoff. It was in the
heart of the Comanche and Kiowa Indian country.

With two companies of New Mexico volunteers and one of California volunteers,
. Caxrson by June.had built six sets of stone officers' quarters and a quartermaster
bulldlng, and the men had been housed in stone-walled tents. The camp, which
¢ occupied an area about 200 feet square, was enclosed by breastworks of stone
and earth.

F0110w1ng'65tabliéhment of the Post, Carson was to protect the trains with
escorts and to attémpt negotiation with the Kiowa and Comanche chiefs. He had
no opportunity, however, to confer with hostile chiefs, as he was almost
immediately called to Santa Fe.
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Throughout the summer of 1865, Camp Nichols provided a rallying point for the
caravans and also furnished escorts for them. The camp was abandoned in late
September 1865.

The Camp Nichols site illustrates the theme of military protection of the
Santa Fe Trail; in association with nearby Cedar Springs--an important trail
camp, it is the most significant Santa Fe Trail site on the 50 mile stretch
of the trail in Oklahoma.
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Artist's Conception of Camp Nichols
The Boise City News- 1968
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